
          

 

 

WEST VILLAGES 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 

CITY OF NORTH PORT 
SARASOTA COUNTY 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
NOVEMBER 11, 2021 

11:00 A.M. 
 

 

 

 

 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.westvillagesid.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
AGENDA 

WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
19503 S. West Villages Parkway, #A4 

Venice, Florida 34293 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87509654850 

Meeting ID: 875 0965 4850 
Code: 11036 Dial In: 1-929-436-2866  

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
November 11, 2021 

11:00 a.m. 
 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication………………………………………………………………………..................Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions 

E. Comments from the Public on All Agenda Items 

F. Approval of Minutes 

1. September 16, 2021 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing…………………………………Page 2 

2. October 14, 2021 Regular Board Meeting………………………………………………………..Page 9 

G. General District Matters 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2021-17 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Amended Budget……..Page 12 

2. Consider Approval of Boundary Amendment Funding Agreement between the District 
and Manasota Beach Ranchlands, LLLP…………………………………………………………Page 35 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2021-18 – Authorizing Boundary Amendment………………………..Page 40 

H. Unit of Development No. 6 

1. Consider Approval of First Amendment to Water Supply Agreement…………………………...Page 42 

I. Administrative Matters 

1. District Engineer 

2. District Attorney 

3. District Operations Manager 

4. District Manager 

J. Board Member Comments 

K. Adjourn  



�����������	��
� �
�����������������������������
����������

����������������
����������� ��! ���

"#$%&''()&*+$�,*-#%&$./0123456�27�89:93;<9�=5:916>?:20/75�;7�@;A5B05:�CD�CECFGHIJKLHM89:93;<9�N;/7<OD�P1;:269QHKLIR�SRTK@U?VNW�UP�XUYZ[�\WW?V@]^W8?�_V̀̀Y]W8V\.ZU_W\W@?�[V8?ZVN?@;<2a5�23�45:50O�b2A57�<49<�<45�X;9:6�;c�8/d5:A23;:3�e�X;9:6�f�;c�<45�̂53<�_2119b53�VBd:;A5B57<�[23<:2a<�e�[23<:2a<�f�g211�4;16�9:5b/19:�B55<27b�;c�<45�X;9:6�;7�@;A5B05:�FFD�CECFD�9<�FFhEE�Yi\i�:5B;<51O�A29�j;;B�a;BB/72a9<2;73�B5629�<5a47;1;bO976�27�d5:3;7�9<�FklEm�8i�̂53<�_2119b53�.9:ng9OD�oYpD�_572a5D�P1;:269�mpCkmi�Y<<57697a5�A29�j;;B�23�3<:;7b1O�57a;/:9b56�27125/�;c�27>d5:3;7�9<<57697a5i?45�B55<27b�23�;d57�<;�<45�d/012a�976�g211�05�a;76/a<56�27�9aa;:697a5�g2<4�<45�d:;A232;73�;c�P1;:269�19g�c;:�a;BB/72<O65A51;dB57<�623<:2a<3i�Y�a;dO�;c�<45�9b5769�c;:�<423�B55<27b�B9O�05�;0<92756�0O�a;7<9a<27b�<45�[23<:2a<�\979b5:�0O�5B9219<�ga:;315Oq36327ai;:bD�0O�<515d4;75�9<�kpF>Cpp>CrElD�;:�0O�A232<27b�<45�[23<:2a<�3�g5032<5D�g53<A2119b5326i;:bi�?423�B55<27bB9O�05�a;7<27/56�<;�9�69<5D�<2B5D�976�d19a5�<;�05�3d5a2c256�;7�<45�:5a;:6�9<�<45�B55<27biY3�9�d/012a�4591<4�d:5a9/<2;7D�911�<4;35�9<<57627b�<45�B55<27b�27�d5:3;7�g211�05�93n56�<;�g59:�9�B93n�976�B927<927�3;a291623<97a27bi�?45�[23<:2a<�c/11O�57a;/:9b53�d/012a�d9:<2a2d9<2;7�27�9�39c5�976�5cc2a257<�B9775:�27�12b4<�;c�<45�NU_V[>Fk�d/012a4591<4�5B5:b57aOi�?;�<49<�576D�<45�[23<:2a<�:5a;BB5763�<49<�97O�B5B05:�;c�<45�d/012a�27<5:53<56�27�123<5727b�<;�976d9:<2a2d9<27b�27�<45�B55<27b�:5B;<51O�6;�3;�0O�1;bb27b�27<;�j;;B�A29�<452:�a;Bd/<5:�9<4<<d3hss/3ECg50it;;Bi/3susrvlEkwlprlE�976�57<5:27b�<45�B55<27b�V[�;c�rvl�Ekwl�prlED�.933a;65�FFEmwD�;:�0O�629127b�27<515d4;72a911O�9<�F>kCk>pmw>Crww�976�57<5:27b�<45�a;7c5:57a5�2657<2c2a9<2;7�7/B05:�rvl�Ekwl�prlED�d933a;65�FFEmwiV7�<45�5A57<�<49<�<45�NU_V[>Fk�d/012a�4591<4�5B5:b57aO�d:5A57<3�<45�B55<27b�c:;B�;aa/::27b�27>d5:3;7D�<45�[23<:2a<�B9Oa;76/a<�<45�B55<27b�57<2:51O�0O�<515d4;75�;:�A265;�a;7c5:57a27b�a;BB/72a9<2;73�B5629�<5a47;1;bO�d/:3/97<�<;b;A5:7B57<91�;:65:3D�27a1/627b�0/<�7;<�12B2<56�<;�97O�:515A97<�Wx5a/<2A5�U:65:3�233/56�0O�];A5:7;:�[5897<23D�976�97O5x<5732;73�;:�3/dd15B57<3�<45:5;cD�976�d/:3/97<�<;�85a<2;7�FCEilpelfe0fCiD�P1;:269�8<9</<53i�V7c;:B9<2;7�90;/<�4;g�<45B55<27b�g211�;aa/:D�93323<97a5�a;775a<27b�<;�<45�B55<27b�;:�9::97b27b�c/:<45:�9aa;BB;69<2;73�c;:�d9:<2a2d9<2;7D�976�97O;<45:�y/53<2;73�a97�05�966:53356�0O�a;7<9a<27b�<45�[23<:2a<�\979b5:�3�;cc2a5�9<�<45�d4;75�7/B05:�;:�5>B921�90;A5D�;:�0OA232<27b�<45�[23<:2a<�3�g5032<5iU75�;:�B;:5�8/d5:A23;:3D�3<9cc�;:�;<45:�2762A26/913�9:5�97<2a2d9<56�<;�d9:<2a2d9<5�0O�j;;Bi�./:3/97<�<;�<45�d:;A232;73�;c�<45YB5:2a973�g2<4�[2390212<253�Ya<D�97O�d5:3;7�:5y/2:27b�3d5a291�9aa;BB;69<2;73�<;�d9:<2a2d9<5�27�<423�B55<27b�;:�<;�;0<9279aa533�<;�<45�<515d4;72aD�A265;�a;7c5:57a27bD�;:�;<45:�a;BB/72a9<2;73�B5629�<5a47;1;bO�/356�<;�a;76/a<�<423�B55<27b�2393n56�<;�96A235�<45�[23<:2a<�Ucc2a5�9<�1593<�c;:<O>52b4<�eprf�4;/:3�d:2;:�<;�<45�B55<27b�0O�a;7<9a<27b�<45�[23<:2a<�\979b5:�9<kpF>Cpp>CrEli�Vc�O;/�9:5�459:27b�;:�3d55a4�2Bd92:56D�d15935�a;7<9a<�<45�P1;:269�Z519O�85:A2a5�0O�629127b�v>F>FD�;:�F>rEE>kll>rvvF�e??zfsF>rEE>kll>rvvE�e_;2a5fD�c;:�926�27�a;7<9a<27b�<45�[23<:2a<�\979b5:iW9a4�d5:3;7�g4;�65a2653�<;�9dd591�97O�9a<2;7�<9n57�9<�<4535�B55<27b3�23�96A2356�<49<�d5:3;7�g211�7556�9�:5a;:6�;c�<45d:;a55627b3�976�<49<�9aa;:627b1OD�<45�d5:3;7�B9O�7556�<;�573/:5�<49<�9�A5:09<2B�:5a;:6�;c�<45�d:;a55627b3�23�B965D27a1/627b�<45�<53<2B;7O�976�5A2657a5�/d;7�g42a4�3/a4�9dd591�23�<;�05�09356i^21129B�N:;315OD�[23<:2a<�\979b5:^53<�_2119b53�N;BB/72<O�[5A51;dB57<�[23<:2a<^W8?�_V̀̀Y]W8�V\.ZU_W\W@?�[V8?ZVN?gggig53<A2119b5326i;:bFFsCsCECF
Page 1



Page 1 of 7 
 

WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
PUBLIC HEARING & REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 16, 2021 
 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The September 16, 2021, Regular Board Meeting of the West Villages Improvement District 
(“WVID” or the “District”) was called to order at 11:00 a.m. at 19503 S. West Villages Parkway, 
#A4, Venice, Florida 34293 and via Zoom:  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87509654850, Meeting 
ID: 875 0965 4850, Dial In: 1-929-436-2866. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that showed the notice of the Regular Board Meeting had 
been published in the Sarasota Herald-Tribune on September 7, 2021, as legally required. 
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was determined that the attendance of the following Supervisors constituted a quorum and it 
was in order to proceed with the meeting: 
 
Chairman John Luczynski Present in person 
Vice Chairman Steve Lewis Present in person 
Supervisor Tom Buckley Present in person 
Supervisor Victor Dobrin Present via Zoom 
Supervisor Christine Masney Present via Zoom 
 
Staff members in attendance were: 
 
District Manager Todd Wodraska (via Zoom) Special District Services, Inc. 
District Manager William Crosley Special District Services, Inc. 
District Counsel Jonathan Johnson (via Zoom) Hopping Green & Sams, P.A. 
District Engineer Richard Ellis Dewberry 
 
Also present were: Kevin Shaughnessy and John Meisel. 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC  
 
There were no comments from the public. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

Page 2



Page 2 of 7 
 

 
1.  August 12, 2021, Public Hearing & Regular Board Meeting 
 

The minutes of the August 12, 2021, Public Hearing & Regular Board Meeting were presented 
for consideration. 
 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Buckley, seconded by Mr. Luczynski and passed unanimously 
approving the minutes of August 12, 2021, Public Hearing & Regular Board Meeting, as 
presented.   
 
G. GENERAL DISTRICT MATTERS 
 1.  Receive Fiscal Year 2020 Audit Report 
 
Mr. Dobrin asked if this was the same format that was received last year. It was noted that the 
audit was not included in the meeting book last year, but was included this year and is also 
posted on the District’s website. There is a finding on the audit related to the Unit 2 bonds. The 
State of Florida provides funds for the stadium debt service in Unit 5 in the amount of $999,996.  
 
There was no further action on this matter. 
 
 2.  Consider Request for Contract Increase to Grau and Associates 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Lewis, seconded by Mr. Buckley approving the Grau and 
Associates’ request for additional fees for the 2021, 2022 and 2023 audits, as presented. The 
motion passed unanimously. 
 
The 2021 audit previously approved at $23,000 is now approved for $30,000. The 2022 audit 
(option year) previously approved for $23,500 is now approved for $31,000, and the 2023 audit 
(option year) previously approved for $24,000 is now approved for $32,000. These requested 
increases are based on actual time incurred for the audits to be completed, as the District 
continues to evolve and the complexity of performing the audits, which has increased 
dramatically.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Lewis, seconded by Mr. Buckley approving the Grau and 
Associates’ request for an additional $5,000 for the 2020 audit. The motion passed on a vote of 4 
to 1 with Mr. Dobrin dissenting. 
  
The Regular Board Meeting was then recessed and the Public Hearing was opened. 
 
 3.  Public Hearing 
  a. Proof of Publication 
 
Proof of publication was presented that showed the notice of the Public Hearing had been 
published in the Sarasota Herald-Tribune on September 7, 2021, as legally required. 
 

Page 3



Page 3 of 7 
 

  b. Receive Public Comment on Permit and Development Review Rates, Fees and 
Charges 
 
It was explained that the purpose of the Review Rates, Fees, and Charges is for the District to get 
reimbursed for any expenses incurred by professional services. These fees may include event 
permit fees, right-of-way permitting, pre-construction meetings, construction reviews and final 
walk-through and acceptance, event permits, review of development plans, preparation of 
irrigation and pond maintenance agreements, plat reviews and City of North Port coordination, 
final reviews and acceptance of irrigation and stormwater improvements.  
 
There was no public comment on the Permit and Development Review Rates, Fees and Charges. 
 
  c. Consider Resolution No. 2021-14 – Adopting Permit and Development Review 
Rates, Fees and Charges 
 
Resolution No. 2021-14 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2021-14 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
ADOPTING PERMIT AND DEVELOPMENT REVIEW 
RATES, FEES AND CHARGES; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
A motion was made by Mr. Luczynski seconded by Mr. Lewis adopting Resolution No. 2021-14 
with the following amendment: to allow the ability of District staff to raise the fees on an annual 
basis with the lesser of 5% or the actual CPI for the preceding 12 months.  That motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
The Public Hearing was then closed and the Regular Board Meeting was reconvened. 
 
H. UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 1 

 
1.  Consider Award of Landscape Contract 
 

Mr. Smith reviewed the evaluation totals that the Landscape Selection Committee had assigned 
to each of the 5 vendors who provided proposals to the District. The Landscape Selection 
Committee’s recommendation was to award Brightview Landscape Services Inc. a one year 
contract in the amount of $749,000 with four one-year extensions. There is a 30 day clause to 
terminate the contract by either party. There was a brief discussion related to the evaluation 
criteria. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Buckley, seconded by Mr. Lewis, awarding Brightview Landscape 
Services Inc. a one year contract in the amount of $749,000 with four one-year extensions with a 

Page 4



Page 4 of 7 
 

30 day clause to terminate the contract by either party.  Upon being put to a vote, the motion 
carried 4 to 0 with Ms. Masney’s audible vote not available at this time. 
 
I. UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 5 
 

1.  Consider Change Order No. 29 (Final) to Barton Malow for Stadium 
Construction Agreement 

 
It was noted that this was the final close out change order for the Atlanta Braves Spring Training 
Facility Project and was a decrease of $875,187.04.  The total contract amount, including this 
change order is $98,515,905.71.  The Atlanta Braves and Stantec Engineering each have 
previously reviewed and approved Change Order No. 29. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Buckley, seconded by Mr. Lewis approving Change Order No. 29 
(Final) to Barton Malow for Stadium Construction Agreement in the decreased amount of 
$875,187.04.  Upon being put to a vote, the motion carried 4 to 0 with Ms. Masney’s audible 
vote still not available at this time. 
 
The Regular Board Meeting was then recessed and the Public Hearing was opened. 
 
J. UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 6 
 
 1.  Public Hearing 
  a. Proof of Publication 
 
Proof of publication was presented that showed the notice of the Public Hearing had been 
published in the Sarasota Herald-Tribune on September 7, 2021, as legally required. 
 
  b. Receive Public Comment on Permit and Development Review Rates, Fees and 
Charges 
 
John Meisel asked if he could get a better understanding of the differentiation between what the 
residents of the District are charged per 1,000 gallons, which is the proposed .73 cents per 1,000 
gallons versus those residents of unincorporated Sarasota County that are charged .46 cents per 
1,000 gallons for irrigation water. It was noted that the rates charged to District residents were 
based on a water rate study that considered the operation and maintenance expenses to deliver 
irrigation quality water.  
 
There was no further public comment. 
 
  c. Consider Resolution No. 2021-15 – Adopting Revised Irrigation Rates, Fees 
and Charges 
 
Resolution No. 2021-15 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2021-15 

Page 5



Page 5 of 7 
 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
ADOPTING REVISED IRRIGATION RATES, FEES AND 
CHARGES; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Mr. Dobrin commented that the water rate study rates were based on a model which should be 
revisited with more current rates to do justice, as it is hard for him to accept these new rates. Mr. 
Luczynski stated that there was a 10-year master irrigation plan currently underway. Once that 
plan is adopted, a new water rate study will be completed, which will contemplate all of the 
significant dollars invested in the infrastructure that will need to be recovered. The rates under 
consideration are one year behind the rate study increases year over year. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Lewis, seconded by Mr. Buckley, adopting Resolution No. 2021-15, 
as presented.  Upon being put to a vote, the motion carried 4 to 1 with Mr. Dobrin dissenting. 
 
The Public Hearing was then closed and the Regular Board Meeting was reconvened. 
 
 2.  Consider Work Authorization No. 4 between the District and Kimley-Horn and 
Associates, Inc. for Professional Services for Regulatory Assistance Services for Reuse 
Distribution System FDEP Permit 
 
It was explained that the purpose of Work Authorization No. 4 amendment was to extend the 
contract from October 1, 2021, to September 30, 2022, and does not contemplate any change in 
the amount of $60,000 previously approved by the Board. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Lewis, seconded by Mr. Buckley and passed unanimously approving 
Work Authorization No. 4 between the District and Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. for 
Professional Services for Regulatory Assistance Services for Reuse Distribution System FDEP 
Permit, as presented. 
 
K. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 

1. District Engineer 
 

The draft of the 10 Year Master Irrigation Plan was previously distributed to District staff and is 
almost ready to be brought to the Board for review.  Staff has been meeting with developers for 
irrigation considerations regarding the planned golf course, which is a critical plan for future 
irrigation use. Additionally, the downtown Wellen Park parcels are also being planned for 
irrigation use and allocations for water.  
 

2.  District Attorney 

Mr. Dobrin asked what the criteria was for the use of any remaining bond funds still remaining 
for projects; and what are the criteria which would delineate improvements versus maintenance? 
For example, if the road configuration was to be changed at an entry or to add certain physical 

Page 6



Page 6 of 7 
 

features, are those elements part of the expenditure that can be charged against that restricted 
fund?  Mr. Johnson replied that each proposed improvement needed to be considered 
individually and the adopted plan of improvements for a specific Unit of Development. 
However, in general, repair and replacement are not covered, but to the extent additional 
improvements are being provided which are related to the utility for what was already existing, 
then that would generally or likely be acceptable.  In each instance, the District Engineer and Tax 
Counsel would need to be comfortable with any proposed expenditure, as they would need to 
sign requisitions for those payments.  
 

3. District Operations’ Manager 
 
Mike Smith reported that Sarasota County had finally started to mow the section of grass along 
US 41 that was unsightly.  The street lights along Preto Boulevard are now operational, which 
was delayed due to an issue on one leg on the 3 phase that was the problem.  In addition, the 
drainage canal from River Road, along Renaissance Boulevard to Prestigio Boulevard has been 
cleared.  The drainage canal was also cleared from US 41 between Renaissance and Oasis to 
River Road.  Routine annual maintenance will be completed going forward to keep these 
expenses much lower than the cost of the aggressive maintenance that was needed in the canals.    
 
 4.  District Manager 
 
It was noted that the next meeting was scheduled for October 14, 2021. 
 
L. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Dobrin noted that he had been contacted by a resident who inquired about the irrigation 
water having a high content of nitrogen. Chairman Luczynski asked that Mr. Dobrin ask the 
resident to contact District staff directly for any questions.  There is no measurement of nitrogen 
in the irrigation water. Chairman Luczynski asked if the individual communities were within 
their irrigation allocations. The Operations’ Manager commented that for the most part, each 
community was in compliance however, Renaissance Phase 1 was having some difficulty due to 
a contractor change who had previously managed the irrigation system and clocks. 
 
Chairman Luczynski asked Mr. Shaughnessy if Gran Paradiso has seen a difference in their 
irrigation demand with the change of the landscape contractor.  Mr. Shaughnessy responded that 
Brightview had just taken over the property, but seasonal controls have been implemented and a 
schedule will be created to reflect month by month adjustments to be made.  The irrigation 
pumps are being shut off after rain events and even during high saturation periods to conserve 
water. The Gran Paradiso POA is directing everyone to not adjust any individual residential 
irrigation clocks. All irrigation clocks are to be programmed by the Gran Paradiso POA 
landscape contractor only.  
 
M. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Page 7



Page 7 of 7 
 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the Regular Board Meeting was 
adjourned at 12:20 p.m. on a MOTION made by Mr. Lewis, seconded by Mr. Buckley and 
passed unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________  ______________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice Chair 

Page 8



Page 1 of 3 
 

WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

OCTOBER 14, 2021 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The October 14, 2021, Regular Board Meeting of the West Villages Improvement District 
(“WVID” or the “District”) was called to order at 11:00 a.m. at 19503 S. West Villages Parkway, 
#A4, Venice, Florida 34293 and via Zoom:  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87509654850, Meeting 
ID: 875 0965 4850, Dial In: 1-929-436-2866. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that showed the notice of the Regular Board Meeting had 
been published in the Sarasota Herald-Tribune on September 7, 2021, as legally required. 
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was determined that the attendance of the following Supervisors constituted a quorum and it 
was in order to proceed with the meeting: 
 
Chairman John Luczynski Absent 
Vice Chairman Steve Lewis Present in person 
Supervisor Tom Buckley Present in person 
Supervisor Victor Dobrin Present in person 
Supervisor Christine Masney Present via Zoom 
 
Staff members in attendance were: 
 
District Manager Todd Wodraska (via Zoom) Special District Services, Inc. 
District Manager William Crosley Special District Services, Inc. 
District Counsel Lindsay Whelan (via Zoom) Hopping Green & Sams, P.A. 
District Engineer Richard Ellis (via Zoom) Dewberry 
 
Also present were: John Meisel, Rich Bando, Ghyl & Bruce Theurer and Kevin Shaughnessy. 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC  
 
Mr. Meisel advised that there was low irrigation pressure around the Campanile Court area and 
asked if there was an update on the District’s involvement that was requested at a previous 
meeting. Mr. Smith responded that the District was aware of the low pressure on that street and 
noted that it was an internal Gran Paradiso POA issue and needed to be addressed by the POA. 

Page 9



Page 2 of 3 
 

Kevin Shaughnessy, the Gran Paradiso liaison to the District, stated that he had spoken with the 
area Irrigation Director of BrightView Landscape Services who indicated that he knew another 
contractor that would come take a look at the issue.  Mr. Shaughnessy reiterated that the low 
pressure matter was an internal POA matter and was not a District issue.  
 
F. UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 1  

 
1.  Consider Resolution No. 2021-16 – Supporting the Procurement of State and 
Federal Funding for Safety and Transportation Improvements Along U.S. 41 
 

Resolution No. 2021-16 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2021-16 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
SUPPORTING THE PROCUREMENT OF STATE AND 
FEDERAL FUNDING FOR SAFETY AND 
TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS ALONG US 41. 

 
Ms. Whalen noted that there was some possible Federal and State funding available for the 
improvements along U.S. 41, such as landscaping, stormwater, bike paths and signalization. This 
would also allow for U.S. 41 to become a lower speed designation.  The District is the most 
appropriate entity to procure those funds, if available.  The District could also be engaged with 
the actual construction and those related services relative to this project.  The request is for the 
Board to approve its Staff, in consultation with the District Chairman, working with the 
developer, state, and local government representatives to try to help procure said funding. This 
agreement also enters the District into a standard funding agreement with the developer to pay all 
expense is related to the cost of the solicitation.  Mr. Meisel asked if the funds that the District 
was seeking were not procured, would the District still be responsible for the improvements on 
U.S. 41.  This question was not answered definitively.  Supervisor Dobrin commented that he 
was in favor of receiving the funds, if available.  There was discussion regarding improvements 
along U.S. 41 relating to the District Pattern Book with specific requirements from the City of 
North Port. 
 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Dobrin, seconded by Mr. Buckley and passed unanimously 
adopting Resolution No. 2021-016, as presented. 
 
G. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 

1. District Engineer 
 

There was no District Engineer Report at this time 
 

2.  District Attorney 

Page 10



Page 3 of 3 
 

There was no District Attorney Report at this time. 
 

3. District Operations’ Manager 
 
Mr. Dobrin asked for an update on the GIS program. The second phase of the GIS program has 
been loaded, and the project came in under budget. New data, soon to be loaded, will be 
additional roads currently under construction.  
 
 4.  District Manager 
 
It was noted that the next meeting was scheduled for November 11, 2021. 
 
H. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no comments from the Board Members. 
 
I. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the Regular Board Meeting was 
adjourned at 11:25 a.m. on a MOTION made by Mr. Buckley, seconded by Mr. Lewis and 
passed unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________  ______________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice Chair 

Page 11



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-17 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT ADOPTING AN AMENDED FISCAL YEAR 2020/2021 
BUDGET. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the West Villages Improvement District 
Community (hereinafter called District) is empowered to impose special assessments upon the 
properties within the District; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has prepared an amended fiscal year 2020/2021 budget. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT THAT: 
  

Section 1. The Amended Budget for Fiscal Year 2020/2021 attached hereto as  
Exhibit “A” is hereby approved and adopted. 

 
 Section 2. The Secretary of the District is authorized to execute any and all necessary 
transmittals, certifications or other acknowledgements or writings, as necessary, to comply with 
the intent of this Resolution. 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 11th day of November, 2021. 
 

 

ATTEST: WEST VILLAGES  
 IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairman/Vice Chairman 
 
 

Page 12



West Villages
Improvement District

Amended Final Budget For
Fiscal Year 2020/2021

October 1, 2020 - September 30, 2021

Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



 West Villages Master Irrigation Utility 

Amended Final Budget For
Fiscal Year 2020/2021

October 1, 2020 - September 30, 2021

Page 33



Page 34



1 

BOUNDARY AMENDMENT FUNDING AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT AND MANASOTA 

BEACH RANCHLANDS, LLLP  
 

 This Agreement is made and entered into this 11th day of November, 2021, by and 
between: 
 

West Villages Improvement District, a local unit of special-purpose government 
established pursuant to Chapter 2004-456, Laws of Florida, as amended, and 
located within the City of North Port and Sarasota County, Florida (the 
“District”); and 

 
Manasota Beach Ranchlands, LLLP, a Florida limited liability limited 
partnership and the owner of certain lands within the boundary of the District 
whose address is 4901 Vineland Road, Suite 450, Orlando, Florida 32811 (the 
“Landowner”). 
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, the District was established pursuant to Chapter 2004-456, Laws of Florida, 
as amended (the “Act”), for the purpose of planning, financing, constructing, operating and/or 
maintaining certain infrastructure; and  
 

WHEREAS, the District presently consists of approximately 12,409 acres, more or less, 
within the City of North Port and Sarasota County as more fully described in the Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has provided and is presently providing infrastructure systems, 
facilities, and services to the lands within the District, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Landowner has approached the District and requested the District to 
seek to amend its boundaries in an effort to facilitate development of the overall lands as a 
functionally interrelated community and to promote economical development; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District agrees to seek to legislation amend its boundary in accordance 
with the procedures and processes prescribed by Florida law, and such other actions as are 
necessary in furtherance of the boundary amendment process; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in order to seek a boundary amendment, the District desires to authorize the 
Chairman, Board Members and District staff, including but not limited to legal, engineering, and 
managerial staff, to provide such services as are necessary throughout the boundary amendment 
process, including the amendment of any assessment reports or proceedings resulting from same; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, any such work shall only be performed in accord with the authorizations of 
the District’s Board of Supervisors; and 

Page 35



2 

  
 WHEREAS, the retention of any necessary consultants and the work to be performed by 
District Staff may require the expenditure of certain fees, costs, and other expenses by the 
District as authorized by the District’s Board of Supervisors; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Landowner desires to provide sufficient funds to the District to 
reimburse the District for any such expenditures including but not limited to legal, engineering, 
and other consultant fees, filing fees, administrative, and other expenses, if any. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, based upon good and valuable consideration and mutual 
covenants of the parties, the receipt of which and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, 
the parties agree as follows: 
 
 1.   PROVISION OF FUNDS.  The Landowner agrees to make available to the District 
such monies as are necessary to enable the District to proceed with the boundary amendment and 
to provide such monies as are necessary to enable District staff, including legal, engineering, and 
managerial staff, to assist in the boundary amendment process and proceedings, including the 
amendment of any assessment reports or proceedings resulting from same.  The Landowner will 
make such funds available within thirty (30) days of a written request by the District.  The funds 
shall be placed in the District’s depository as determined by the District. 
  

2.   DISTRICT USE OF FUNDS.  The District agrees to use such funds solely for the 
fees, costs, and other expenditures accruing or accrued for the purpose of seeking an amendment 
to the boundaries of the District in accord with Florida law.  The District agrees to use good faith 
best efforts to proceed in an expeditious manner to the seek the amendment of the District's 
boundary and with the prosecution of the procedural requirements prescribed by Florida law.  
The District also agrees to make monthly requests for necessary funds from the Landowner for 
reimbursement for services of the boundary amendment team, as described in Section 1 of this 
Agreement.  The District shall not reimburse the Landowner for funds made available under this 
Agreement. 
 

3. DEFAULT.  A default by either party under this Agreement shall entitle the other 
to all remedies available at law or in equity, which may include, but not be limited to, the right of 
damages, injunctive relief and/or specific performance. 

 
 4. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT.  In the event that either party is required to 
enforce this Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the prevailing party shall be 
entitled to recover all fees and costs incurred, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, paralegal 
fees, and expert witness fees and costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate 
proceedings. 
 
 5. AGREEMENT.  This instrument shall constitute the final and complete expression 
of this Agreement between the parties relating to the subject matter of this Agreement. 
 

Page 36



3 

6. AMENDMENTS.  Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in this 
Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing that is executed by both of the parties 
hereto. 
 
 7. AUTHORIZATION.  The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized by 
the appropriate body or official of all parties to this Agreement, each party has complied with all 
the requirements of law, and each party has full power and authority to comply with the terms 
and provisions of this instrument. 
 
 8. NOTICES.  All notices, requests, consents and other communications under this 
Agreement (“Notices”) shall be in writing and shall be delivered, mailed by First Class Mail, 
postage prepaid, or overnight delivery service, to the parties, as follows: 
 

A. DISTRICT:  West Villages Improvement District 
c/o Special District Services, Inc. 
2501-A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 
Attn: Todd Wodraska 

 
With a copy to: Hopping Green & Sams, P.A. 

119 South Monroe Street, Suite 300 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
Attn: District Counsel 

 
B. LANDOWNER: Manasota Beach Ranchlands LLLP 

      4901 Vineland Road, Suite 450 
Orlando, Florida 32811 

      Attn: Rick Severance 
      Attn: Leslie Candes 
 
 Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received 
only upon actual delivery at the address set forth in this Agreement.  Notices delivered after 5:00 
p.m. (at the place of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next 
business day.  If any time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire 
on a non-business day, the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day.  
Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be 
regarded as business days.  Counsel for the parties may deliver Notice on behalf of the parties.  
Any party or other person to whom Notices are to be sent or copied may notify the other parties 
and addresses of any change in name or address to which Notices shall be sent by providing the 
same on five (5) days written notice to the parties and addresses set forth in this Agreement. 
 
 9. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the 
formal parties to this Agreement and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason 
hereof, to or for the benefit of any third party not a formal party to this Agreement.  Nothing in 
this Agreement expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person 

Page 37



4 

or corporation other than the parties to this Agreement any right, remedy or claim under or by 
reason of this Agreement or any provisions or conditions hereof; and all of the provisions, 
representations, covenants and conditions contained in this Agreement shall inure to the sole 
benefit of and shall be binding upon the parties to this Agreement and their respective 
representatives, successors, and assigns. 
 

10. ASSIGNMENT.  Neither party may assign this Agreement or any monies to become 
due hereunder without the prior written approval of the other party. 
 

11. CONTROLLING LAW.  This Agreement and the provisions contained herein shall 
be construed, interpreted, and controlled according to the laws of the State of Florida. 

 
12. EFFECTIVE DATE.  The Agreement shall be effective after execution by both 

parties to this Agreement and shall remain in effect unless terminated by either of the parties. 
 

13. PUBLIC RECORDS.  Landowner understands and agrees that all documents of any 
kind provided to the District or to District staff in connection with the work contemplated under 
this Agreement may be public records and will be treated as such in accord with Florida law. 
 

14. ARM’S LENGTH TRANSACTION.  This Agreement has been negotiated fully 
between the parties as an arm's length transaction.  The parties participated fully in the 
preparation of this Agreement with the assistance of their respective counsel.  In the case of a 
dispute concerning the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, the parties are each 
deemed to have drafted, chosen, and selected the language, and doubtful language will not be 
interpreted or construed against any party. 
 

15. SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY.  Landowner agrees that nothing in this Agreement shall 
constitute or be construed as a waiver of the District’s limitations on liability beyond those 
contained in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other statutes or law. 
 

16. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY.  The descriptive headings in this 
Agreement are for convenience only and shall not control nor affect the meaning or construction 
of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 

 
17. COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of 

counterparts, each of which when executed and delivered shall be an original; however, all such 
counterparts together shall constitute but one and the same instrument.  Signature and 
acknowledgment pages, if any, may be detached from the counterparts and attached to a single 
copy of this document to physically form one document. 

 
18. WITHDRAWAL OF BOUNDARY AMENDMENT.  The execution of this Agreement 

does not constitute consent to the proposed boundary amendment.  The District and Landowner 
agree that should the Landowner determine that the boundary amendment is no longer in its best 
interest and request that the District withdraw from the boundary amendment petition process, 
the District will withdraw the boundary amendment.  The Landowner will be remain responsible 

Page 38



5 

for all expenses under this Agreement incurred to prior to withdrawal and related to the 
withdrawal. 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties execute this agreement the day and year first 
written above. 
        
 
ATTEST:     WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
              
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
  
WITNESS: 
 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
 
___________________________________ 
Witness (Print Name) 
 

MANASOTA BEACH RANCHLANDS, LLLP, a 
Florida limited liability limited partnership 
 
By: Thomas Ranch Villages GP, LLC, a 
Delaware limited liability company, as its General 
Partner 
 
By: Thomas Ranch Manager, LLC, a 
Delaware limited liability company, as its Manager 
 
 
_________________________________ 
 
By: ___________________________ 
 
Its:       ___________________________ 
 

  
 
  

Page 39



1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-18 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
DIRECTING THE CHAIRMAN, BOARD MEMBERS AND 
DISTRICT STAFF TO SEEK LEGISLATION AMENDING 
THE DISTRICT BOUNDARIES, AND AUTHORIZING SUCH 
OTHER ACTIONS AS ARE NECESSARY IN FURTHERANCE 
OF THE BOUNDARY AMENDMENT PROCESS; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   

 
 WHEREAS, the West Villages Improvement District (“District”) is a local unit of special 
purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 2004-456, Laws of Florida, as 
amended (the “Act”); and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the District is authorized to construct, acquire, and 
maintain infrastructure improvements and services; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District presently consists of approximately 12,409 acres, more or less, 
within the City of North Port and Sarasota County as more fully described in the Act; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District desires to affect legislation to amend its boundaries to add certain 
development lands in accordance with the procedures and processes prescribed by Florida law, and 
such other actions as are necessary in furtherance of the boundary amendment process; and 
 

WHEREAS, in order to seek a boundary amendment, the District desires to authorize the 
Chairman, Board Members and District staff, including but not limited to legal, engineering, and 
managerial staff, to provide such services as are necessary throughout the pendency of the boundary 
amendment process, and to ratify any actions by such persons taken to date in furtherance of the 
proposed boundary amendment. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT: 

 
SECTION 1.  The recitals as stated above are true and correct and by this reference are 

incorporated into and form a material part of this Resolution. 
 

SECTION 2.  The Board hereby directs the Chairman, Board Members and District staff to 
proceed in an expeditious manner with the preparation and filing of legislation and related materials 
to seek the amendment of the District’s boundaries and authorizes the prosecution of the procedural 
requirements detailed in Florida law for the amendment of the District’s boundaries.  The Board 
hereby ratifies any actions by such persons taken to date in furtherance of the proposed boundary 
amendment. 
 

Page 40



2 

SECTION 3.  This Resolution shall become effective upon its passage. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 11th day of November, 2021. 
 
 
ATTEST:      WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT 

DISTRICT  
 
 
 
_____________________________   ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary    Chairman/Vice Chairman 

Page 41



1 

After recording return to:  
Lindsay C. Whelan 
Hopping Green & Sams, P.A. 
119 S. Monroe Street, Suite 300 
Tallahassee, Florida 32308 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO IRRIGATION WATER SUPPLY AGREEMENT 
 

 THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO IRRIGATION WATER SUPPLY AGREEMENT 

(“Amendment”) is made and entered into by and between the WEST VILLAGES IMPROVE-

MENT DISTRICT, an independent special district created pursuant to Chapter 189, Florida Stat-

utes (“F.S.”), hereinafter referred to as the “DISTRICT”; THE RANCH LAND OPERATIONS, 

LLLP, a Florida limited liability limited partnership, hereinafter referred to as the “RANCH,” 

whose address is 4901 Vineland Road, Suite 450, Orlando, Florida 32811; and THOMAS 

RANCH INTANGIBLES, LLLP, a Florida limited liability limited partnership, as Trustee under 

the Water Rights Trust Agreement dated December 12, 2017, hereinafter referred to as “TRUS-

TEE,” whose address is 4901 Vineland Road, Suite 450, Orlando, Florida 32811 (each may be 

referred to individually as a “Party” or collectively as the “Parties”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the District is a local unit of special-purpose government created and existing 

pursuant to Chapter 2004-456, Laws of Florida, as amended (the “Act”) for the purpose of plan-

ning, financing, constructing, operating and/or maintaining certain infrastructure and providing 

certain public services; and 

WHEREAS, the District has established its “Unit of Development No. 6” (hereinafter re-

ferred to as “Unit No. 6”) relative to its provision of irrigation services to the lands within the 

Page 42



2 

District;1 and 

WHEREAS, the majority of the lands within Unit No. 6 are subject to restrictive covenants 

recorded as Instruments #2017156389 and #2018128694 in the Official Records of Sarasota 

County, Florida (the “Original Restrictive Covenants”); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Restrictive Covenants, Trustee has the following exclusive 

rights within the lands subject to the Original Restrictive Covenants: (1) the right to seek, directly 

or indirectly, a groundwater well construction permit or water or consumptive use permit; (2) the 

right to install a groundwater well; (3) the right to withdraw water from a surface water body; (4) 

the right to divert fresh or saline water; and (5) the right to construct, install, maintain, repair, and 

replace the irrigation system (collectively the “Contract Rights”); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to that certain Irrigation Water Supply Agreement, recorded as In-

strument No. 2018159052 in the Official Records of Sarasota County, Florida (the “Water Supply 

Agreement”), Trustee has assigned the Contract Rights to the District, on a non-exclusive basis, 

such that the Trustee will accordingly be the exclusive provider of groundwater from the lands 

subject to the Original Restrictive Covenants to the District for irrigation, and the District will be 

the exclusive provider of irrigation water to its users; and 

WHEREAS, due to an ongoing land sale transaction that was underway at the time of 

negotiation and execution of the Water Supply Agreement, the lands within the “Tortuga” resi-

dential project, which is located within Unit No. 6 within the District, were not included within 

the scope of the Original Restrictive Covenants; and 

WHEREAS, as a result, at the conclusion of the land sale transaction but subsequent to 

the execution of the Water Supply Agreement, an additional restrictive covenant was recorded as 

 
1 Note that the IslandWalk residential community is the only property within the District that is not also included 
within Unit No. 6. 

Page 43



3 

Instrument No. 2020069015 in the Official Records of Sarasota County, Florida relative to the 

lands within Tortuga (the “Tortuga Restrictive Covenant”); and  

WHEREAS, there is accordingly a need to amend the Water Supply Agreement to add the 

Tortuga Restrictive Covenant to the scope thereof in order for the Contract Rights set forth in such 

covenant to be assigned to the District such that it shall be the exclusive provider of irrigation 

water to the properties within Tortuga. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED as follows: 

1. Recitals and Exhibits. The Parties agree that the recitals and exhibits attached hereto are 

adopted and incorporated herein by reference as if restated in their entirety. 

2. Amendment of Agreement. The third WHEREAS clause in the Water Supply Agreement 

is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 

 

WHEREAS, Unit No. 6 includes lands (the “Restricted Lands”) described in, and 

subject to, Restrictive Covenants recorded in the Official Records as Instruments 

#2017156389, #2018128694 and #2020069015, Public Records of Sarasota County, 

Florida (the “Restrictive Covenants”); 

 

3. Affirmation of Agreement.  The Water Supply Agreement is hereby affirmed, and the 

Parties hereto acknowledge and agree that it continues to constitute a valid and binding 

agreement between the Parties.  Except as described in Section 2 of this Amendment, noth-

ing herein shall modify the rights and obligations of the Parties under the Water Supply 

Agreement.  All of the remaining provisions remain in full effect and fully enforceable. 

Page 44



4 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the authorized representatives of the Parties have duly executed 

this Amendment as of the date(s) set forth below.  

 
Witnesses: 
 
 
        
 
Print Name:      
 
 
        
 
Print Name:      
 

  
 
 

West Villages Improvement District, 
an independent special district created 
pursuant to Chapter 189, Florida Statutes 
 
 
By:   

John Luczynski, Chairman 
 
 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF SARASOTA 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on this day, before me by means of ▢ physical presence or ▢ 
online notarization, an officer duly authorized in the State aforesaid and in the County aforesaid 
to take acknowledgments, personally appeared John Luczynski, to me known to be the person 
described in and who executed the foregoing instrument as Chairman of West Villages Improve-
ment District, an independent special district created pursuant to Chapter 189, Florida Statutes, on 
behalf of the District and acknowledged before me that he executed same as a free act and deed 
for the uses and purposes therein stated. 
 

WITNESS my hand and official seal in the County and State last aforesaid this ____day of 
________________ 2021. 
 

  
Notary Public 
Print Name:  
My Commission Number: 

Page 45



 

 
Witnesses: 
 
 
        
 
Print Name:      
 
 
        
 
Print Name:      
 
 

The Ranch Land Operations, LLLP, a Flor-
ida limited liability limited partnership 
By: Thomas Ranch Villages GP, LLC, 

a Delaware limited liability company  
As its General Partner 
By: Thomas Ranch Manager, LLC, 

a Delaware limited liability company 
As its Manager 

 
 

  
By: _______________________ 
Its: Vice President 

 
 
 
 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF SARASOTA 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on this day, before me by means of ▢ physical presence or ▢ 
online notarization, an officer duly authorized in the State aforesaid and in the County aforesaid 
to take acknowledgments, personally appeared _______________, to me known to be the person 
described in and who executed the foregoing instrument as Vice President of Thomas Ranch Man-
ager, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and Manager of Thomas Ranch Villages GP, 
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and General Partner of The Ranch Land Operations, 
LLLP, a Florida limited liability limited partnership, on behalf of the companies and the partner-
ship and acknowledged before me that he executed same as a free act and deed for the uses and 
purposes therein stated. 
 

WITNESS my hand and official seal in the County and State last aforesaid this ____day of 
________________ 2021. 
 

  
Notary Public 
Print Name:  
My Commission Number: 

 
  

Page 46



 

Witnesses: 
 
 
        
 
Print Name:      
 
 
        
 
Print Name:      
 
 

Thomas Ranch Intangibles, LLLP, a Florida 
limited liability limited partnership, as Trustee 
aforesaid 
By: Thomas Ranch Villages GP, LLC, 

a Delaware limited liability company  
As its General Partner 
By: Thomas Ranch Manager, LLC, 

a Delaware limited liability company 
As its Manager 

 
 

  
By: _______________________ 
Its: Vice President 

 
 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF SARASOTA 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on this day, before me by means of ▢ physical presence or ▢ 
online notarization, an officer duly authorized in the State aforesaid and in the County aforesaid 
to take acknowledgments, personally appeared __________________, to me known to be the per-
son described in and who executed the foregoing instrument as Vice President of Thomas Ranch 
Manager, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and Manager of Thomas Ranch Villages GP, 
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and General Partner of Thomas Ranch Intangibles, 
LLLP, a Florida limited liability limited partnership, as Trustee aforesaid, on behalf of the compa-
nies and the partnership and acknowledged before me that he executed same as a free act and deed 
for the uses and purposes therein stated. 
 

WITNESS my hand and official seal in the County and State last aforesaid this ____day of 
________________ 2021. 
 

  
Notary Public 
Print Name:  
My Commission Number: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 47


	West Villages Improvement District - November 11, 2021 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	Approval of Minutes
	September 16, 2021 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing
	October 14, 2021 Regular Board Meeting

	General District Matters
	Consider Resolution No. 2021-17 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Amended Budget
	Consider Approval of Boundary Amendment Funding Agreement between the District and Manasota Beach Ranchlands, LLLP
	Consider Resolution No. 2021-18 – Authorizing Boundary Amendment

	Unit of Development No. 6
	Consider Approval of First Amendment to Water Supply Agreement





